
Staff Contact Nick Kimball, City Manager 

MAYOR CELESTE T. RODRIGUEZ  
VICE MAYOR MARY MENDOZA 
COUNCILMEMBER CINDY MONTAÑEZ 
COUNCILMEMBER JOEL FAJARDO 
COUNCILMEMBER MARY SOLORIO 

-u 
 

CITY OF SAN FERNANDO 

CITY COUNCIL 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA SUMMARY 

TUESDAY, MAY 30, 2023 - 6:00 PM 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
117 MACNEIL STREET 

SAN FERNANDO, CALIFORNIA 91340 

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION OPTIONS 

WATCH THE MEETING 

Live stream with audio and video, via YouTube Live, at: 
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando 

Note:  Comments submitted via YouTube will not be read into the record.  

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT IN PERSON 

Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the Public 
Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk.   

SUBMIT PUBLIC COMMENT VIA EMAIL 

Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than 
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting, to ensure distribution to the City Council prior to consideration 
of the agenda.  Comments received via email will be distributed to the City Council, read into the 
record, limited to three minutes, and made part of the official public record of the meeting. 

CALL-IN TO PROVIDE PUBLIC COMMENT LIVE AT THE MEETING 

Members of the public may call-in between 6:00 p.m. and 6:15 p.m.  Comments will be heard in 
the order received, and limited to three minutes.  If necessary, the call-in period may be extended 
by the Mayor.  Note: This is audio only and no video. 

Call-in Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833 
Meeting ID:  833 6022 0211 

Passcode:  924965 

When connecting to the Zoom meeting to speak, you will be placed in a virtual “waiting area,” 
with your audio disabled, until it is your turn to speak and limited to three minutes. 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 1 of 99

https://www.youtube.com/c/CityOfSanFernando
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Special Meeting Notice and Agenda – May 30, 2023 
Page 2 of 3 
 

 

CALL TO ORDER  
 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
 
TELECONFERENCING REQUESTS/DISCLOSURE 
 
Recommend consideration of requests received for remote teleconference meeting participation 
made by members of the City’s legislative bodies, as permitted under the provisions of Assembly 
Bill (AB) 2449, Government Code Section 54953, and the City of San Fernando adopted Resolution  
No. 8215, effective March 1, 2023. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Led by City Clerk Julia Fritz  
 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
  
Recommend that the City Council approve the agenda as presented and move that all ordinances 
presented tonight be read in title only as authorized under Government Code Section 36934.  
 
 
DECORUM AND ORDER 
 
The City Council, elected by the public, must be free to discuss issues confronting the City in an 
orderly environment.  Members of the public attending City Council meetings shall observe the 
same rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Council (SF Procedural Manual). Any person 
making impertinent derogatory or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while 
addressing the City Council or while attending the City Council meeting, may be removed from the 
room if the Presiding Officer so directs the sergeant-at-arms and such person may be barred from 
further audience before the City Council. 
 
 
PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  
Members of the public may provide comments in person in the City Council Chambers during the 
Public Comments section of the Agenda by submitting a comment card to the City Clerk. 
 
Members of the public may submit comments by email to cityclerk@sfcity.org no later than  
5:00 p.m. the day of the meeting to ensure distribution to the City Council and read into the record.  
 
Members of the public may provide a live public comment by calling in between 6:00 p.m. and 
6:15 p.m.  CALL-IN INFORMATION:  Telephone Number: (669) 900-6833; Meeting ID: 833 6022 
0211; Passcode: 924965  
 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 2 of 99

mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


SAN FERNANDO CITY COUNCIL 
Special Meeting Notice and Agenda – May 30, 2023 
Page 3 of 3 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1) CONSIDERATION TO PURCHASE AND INSTALL TWO EMERGENCY BACKUP POWER
GENERATORS FOR LAS PALMAS AND RECREATION PARKS

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Approve the purchase and installation of two Generac Industrial Power Diesel Generators
SD 100 for an amount not to exceed $300,000 from Grainger through the Sourcewell
Purchasing Cooperative Contract No. 091422-WWG; and

b. Authorize City Manager to execute the Purchase Order and all related documents.

ADMINISTRATIVE REPORTS 

2) FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024 BUDGET STUDY SESSION NO. 2

Recommend that the City Council:

a. Review and discuss the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget; and

b. Provide direction to staff, as appropriate.

STAFF COMMUNICATION INCLUDING COMMISSION UPDATES 

GENERAL CITY COUNCIL/BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS AND LIAISON UPDATES 

ADJOURNMENT   The meeting will adjourn to its next regular meeting. 

I hereby certify under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California that the foregoing 
special meeting agenda was posted on the City Hall bulletin board not less than 24 hours prior to the 
meeting.  

___________________________________ 
Julia Fritz, CMC 
City Clerk 
Signed and Posted: May 26, 2023 (1:30 p.m.) 
The Special Meetings of the City Council of the City of San Fernando, and, from time to time, such other bodies of the City composed exclusive of 
the Members of the City Council.    

Agendas and complete Agenda Packets (including staff reports and exhibits related to each item) are posted on the City’s Internet website 
www.sfcity.org.  These are also available for public reviewing prior to a meeting in the City Clerk Department. Any public writings distributed by 
the City Council to at least a majority of the Councilmembers regarding any item on this regular meeting agenda will also be made available at 
the City Clerk Department at City Hall located at 117 Macneil Street, San Fernando, CA, 91340 during normal business hours.  In addition, the City 
may also post such documents on the City’s website at www.sfcity.org. In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, if you 
require a disability-related modification/accommodation to attend or participate in this meeting, including auxiliary aids or services please call 
the City Clerk Department at (818) 898-1204 or cityclerk@sfcity.org at least 48 hours prior to the meeting. 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 3 of 99

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/
http://www.sfcity.org/
mailto:cityclerk@sfcity.org


 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 4 of 99



May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 5 of 99



 

This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 6 of 99



May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 7 of 99



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 8 of 99



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-1222                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By:  Rodrigo Mora, Public Works Operations Manager 
   
Date:  May 30, 2023 
 
Subject: Consideration to Purchase and Install Two Emergency Backup Power Generators 

for Las Palmas and Recreation Parks 
  
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that the City Council: 
 
a. Approve the purchase and installation of two Generac Industrial Power Diesel Generators SD 

100 for an amount not to exceed $300,000 from Grainger (Attachments “A” and “B”) through 
the Sourcewell Purchasing Cooperative Contract No. 091422-WWG (Attachment “C”); and   
 

b. Authorize City Manager to execute the Purchase Order and all related documents. 
  

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
1. On August 14, 2015, the City became a member of the National Joint Power Alliance, Now 

Sourcewell. 
 

2. In March 2021, the California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES), through the 
Community Power Resiliency Allocation Cities Program, awarded the City a $300,000 grant to 
purchase and install generators, fuel storage, and the necessary connection hardware, to 
support cooling centers and emergency services at Las Palmas and Recreation parks 
(Attachments “D” and “E”).  

 
3. On April 21, 2023, staff obtained two competitively solicited bids for two Generac Generators 

from Grainger via their contract with Sourcewell to be purchased by the City. 
 
 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 9 of 99



Consideration to Purchase and Install Two Emergency Backup Power Generators for Las Palmas and 
Recreation Parks 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
Cooling Centers at Las Palmas and Recreation Parks. 
The City experiences extreme heat days during the Summer. When temperatures reach over 100 
degrees Fahrenheit, the City opens and advertises cooling centers at Las Palmas Park, and 
depending on demand, at Recreation Park as well. These cooling centers offer a refuge for 
residents, especially older adults, who do not have access to air conditioning at their residence, 
and offer a space for residents to better know each other. The two park facilities are essential 
hubs in the community and can also serve as emergency operation centers in times of crisis. The 
current cooling / emergency operations centers at Las Palmas and Recreation parks do not have 
the capacity to operate as intended during a power outage. In the summer of 2020, Southern 
California Edison planned a power outage for maintenance, and the City rented temporary 
emergency backup generators to support the cooling centers. Installing permanent emergency 
backup generators at Las Palmas and Recreation parks will ensure the community is served during 
high heat days planned power outages, and supports the planning of future emergency operation 
centers at the parks.  
 
Procurement through Sourcewell Contract. 
Sourcewell provides state and local government agencies as well as public educational 
institutions within the State of California with a specialized procurement process for obtaining 
specific products and services. This program ensures that purchasing agencies are given the 
option to choose the service that best meets their specific business needs, while maintaining an 
easy-to-use, cost-effective government procurement plan. Sourcewell uses existing 
competitively awarded government contracts to create the basis for the procurement needs of 
the State of California.  They offer a wide variety of commodity, non-IT services, and information 
technology products and services at prices which have been assessed to be fair, reasonable, and 
competitive. 
 
The Public Works Department uses Sourcewell for the following reasons: 
 
• The City is a member of Sourcewell; 
• It is an established and well-recognized program used by numerous local and state agencies; 
• Allows access to multiple vendors and competitive bids; and 
• Reduced demand on staff time and resources. 
 
Sourcewell has a contract with Grainger, the supplier which provides Generac brand generators, 
for equipment that is available for purchase by local government agencies.  
 
Generac Generators. 
The Generac Generators, purchased through Grainger, will supply each park facility with backup 
power in case of an outage. City staff have identified the location for each generator in safe 
locations, away from the general public. Attachment “E” of this report includes a rendering of 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 10 of 99



Consideration to Purchase and Install Two Emergency Backup Power Generators for Las Palmas and 
Recreation Parks 
Page 3 of 3 
 
 
the generator. The equipment, conduit, and necessary construction improvements to the sites 
will be installed by a Generac certified contractor under the Sourcewell, Grainger contract.  
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
Grant funds to this purchase and install the generators were secured through the Cal OES 
Community Power Resiliency Allocation Cities Program and are included in the Fiscal Year 2023-
2024 Budget (Account: 010-390-3648-4500).     
 
 
CONCLUSION: 
 
Staff recommends the City Council authorize a Purchase Order with Grainger in an amount not 
to exceed $300,000.00 based on Section 2-802 of the City’s Purchasing Ordinance No. 1653 
allowing purchasing of equipment through cooperative purchasing agreements. This project is in 
line with the adopted City Council Strategic Goal IV: Strengthen Climate and Environmental 
Justice - The City of San Fernando is committed to protecting public health, natural resources, and 
local water independence by being a leader in promoting conservation, energy efficiency, 
sustainability, reducing climate-related risks, and increasing climate resilience and adaptation. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 
A. Grainger Quote 1 – Las Palmas Park 
B. Grainger Quote 2 – Recreation Park 
C. Sourcewell Contract 
D. Cal OES Notification of Sub-recipient Allocation Letter  
E. Rendering of the Generator 

 
 
 
 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 11 of 99



800-Grainger

www.grainger.com

eQuote Information:

    Page 1   / 4  

       Thank You!

WW GRAINGER FINDMRO BRANCH

FINDMRO BRANCH

100 GRAINGER PKWY

LAKE FOREST IL  60045-5201

Customer Quotation.

Ship To:
SAN FERNANDO COMMUNITY CENTER

Attn: RODRIGO MORA

505 S HUNTINGTON ST

SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340-3917

US

Shipper Account: 

Comments: One or more items may be non-cancelable /non-returnable. Please see item notes below.

GRAINGER AS DISTRIBUTOR. Client acknowledges and agrees that W.W. Grainger, Inc. ("Grainger") will serve as an authorized distributor of

WEST COAST ENERGY SYSTEMS LLC for the services described herein. In that capacity, Grainger will perform in accordance with underlying CITY

OF SAN FERNANDO/Grainger contract terms and conditions as modified by any additional agreed upon WEST COAST ENERGY SYSTEMS LLC

terms and conditions applicable to this sourced service proposal, and will ensure WEST COAST ENERGY SYSTEMS LLC performance is equally as

compliant with agreed upon sourced service proposal terms and conditions. Client acknowledges and agrees that Grainger, as the distributor of this

sourced service, will not perform any of the services described herein, including, but not limited to, any work on site, supervision, inspection,

coordination, scheduling, project management or other task normally provided by a provider of such services.

One or more items may be non-cancelable /non-returnable. Please see item notes below.

  Line Description MFG Part Lead Time Qty. Unit Quote Extended
No Bus.days Price Price

   10 SD100  120 1 EA     79,274.60     79,274.60 

GENERAC INDUSTRIAL POWER DIESEL

GENERATOR SD100

Mfr Brand Name GENERAC

Customer Part No.: 

Carrier: 11111 - DEFAULT CARRIER

Cost expiration date: 05/20/2023

Taxable: NO

Notes: Product is Non-Cancelable/Non-Returnable.

Generac Industrial Power Diesel Engine-Driven Generator Set with the

following features and

accessories:

# SD100 Standby rated, 100kW Rating, wired for 120/208V., 3Phase, 4Wire

Information
Grainger Quote Number

Print Date

Customer Account

Department Number

Contact Name

Contact Phone

Contact Fax

Contact Email

Customer PO

Customer Job Name

2054084931

04/21/2023

819379686

RODRIGO MORA

8184384112

rmora@sfcity.org

ATTACHMENT "A"
May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 12 of 99



800-Grainger

www.grainger.com

    Page 2   / 4  

       Thank You!

WW GRAINGER FINDMRO BRANCH

FINDMRO BRANCH

100 GRAINGER PKWY

LAKE FOREST IL  60045-5201

Customer Quotation.

            # Soundproof Enclosure rated for Outdoor Installation with PM Filter

            Prep

            # Sub Base Fuel Tank 220 Gallon (30 hrs) with Standard Options, 7.5

            Gallon Fill/Spill Box, Normal 2# Vent 12#

            Extended, OPV

            # UL2200, EPA Certified, SCAQMD Pre-Certified

            # PowerZone 410 Control Panel

            o Meets NFPA 99 and 110 requirements

            o 2-wire start controls for any 2-wire transfer switch

            # Battery Charger, 10 Amp, installed

            # 925 CCA Batteries, with rack, installed

            # Coolant Heater, 1500W, 120VAC

            # Engine Run Relay, 120V GFCI and 240V Outlets

            # -1- MLCB 400Amp., 100% rated, Therm/Mag

            # -1- MLCB 400Amp., 80% rated, Therm/Mag for Load bank Connection

            # Standard Factory Load Test at reactive (0.8) power factor

            # Standard 2-Year Comprehensive Warranty (P/L/T)

            SHIPPED LOOSE ITEMS

            # -3- O&M Manuals

            # -1- 12# Normal Vent Pipe 2#

            # -1- PM Filter + Installation Materials

            # -1- Remote Annunciator

            # -1- Remote E-stop

   20 TX400  120                 1 EA      5,615.58      5,615.58 

GENERAC INDUSTRIAL POWER DIESEL ATS,

400AMP, 4POLE, 120/208V, 3PHASE, 4WIRE,

NEMA1

Information
Grainger Quote Number

Print Date

Customer Account

Page

2054084931

04/21/2023

819379686

2   / 4  

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 13 of 99



800-Grainger

www.grainger.com

    Page 3   / 4  

       Thank You!

WW GRAINGER FINDMRO BRANCH

FINDMRO BRANCH

100 GRAINGER PKWY

LAKE FOREST IL  60045-5201

Customer Quotation.

Mfr Brand Name GENERAC

Customer Part No.: 

Carrier: 11111 - DEFAULT CARRIER

Cost expiration date: 05/20/2023

Taxable: NO

Notes: Product is Non-Cancelable/Non-Returnable.

            Generac Industrial Power Automatic Transfer Switch with the following

            features and accessories:

            # 400Amp, 4Pole, 4Wire wired for 120/208V., 3Phase, NEMA1

            # UL2200, IBC Seismic Certified

   30 START UP

SERVICE

 120                 1 EA      4,128.75      4,128.75 

START/TEST WITH BUILDING TRANSFER

TEST, PM FILTER BASELINE TEST AND

TRAINING

Mfr Brand Name GENERAC

Customer Part No.: 

Carrier: 11111 - DEFAULT CARRIER

Cost expiration date: 05/20/2023

Taxable: NO

Notes: Product is Non-Cancelable/Non-Returnable.

            Services:

            # Standard Generator Start/Test (after Installation by others) including

            Building Transfer Test

            # PM Filter Baseline Site Test

            # Standard Training during Start/Test

Information
Grainger Quote Number

Print Date

Customer Account

Page

2054084931

04/21/2023

819379686

3   / 4  

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 14 of 99



800-Grainger

www.grainger.com

    Page 4   / 4  

       Thank You!

WW GRAINGER FINDMRO BRANCH

FINDMRO BRANCH

100 GRAINGER PKWY

LAKE FOREST IL  60045-5201

Customer Quotation.

Total Sell Price in  USD            89,018.93 

This is not an invoice. Changes to product or quantities may result in different pricing. Availability and lead times are subject to change and can be confirmed at order

placement. Additional lead time may apply for AK and HI. Unless otherwise stated, these items are sold for domestic consumption in the United States. If exported,

purchaser assumes full responsibility for compliance with U. S. export control. Contact Sales Rep.or Grainger branch listed below for questions, order placement or to

submit a new request. RETURN POLICY: Sourced Product is subject to the manufacturer's return policy and may not be returnable. Please contact Grainger at

Customer Care at 1-800-GRAINGER (472-4643) to verify whether your Sourced Product item(s) can be returned. A restocking fee and other charges may apply.

Returned Sourced Product must be in new/unused and in original packaging. Customer is responsible for return shipping costs for Sourced Products No cancellations,

refunds or credits are allowed for items marked in Sourced Product quotations or invoices as  "Non-Cancellable" or "Non-Returnable".

Information
Grainger Quote Number

Print Date

Customer Account

Page

2054084931

04/21/2023

819379686

4   / 4  

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 15 of 99



800-Grainger

www.grainger.com

eQuote Information:

    Page 1   / 4  

       Thank You!

WW GRAINGER FINDMRO BRANCH

FINDMRO BRANCH

100 GRAINGER PKWY

LAKE FOREST IL  60045-5201

Customer Quotation.

Ship To:
CITY OF SAN FERNANDO

Attn: RODRIGO MORA

117 N MACNEIL ST

SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340-2911

US

Shipper Account: 

Comments: One or more items may be non-cancelable /non-returnable. Please see item notes below.

GRAINGER AS DISTRIBUTOR. Client acknowledges and agrees that W.W. Grainger, Inc. ("Grainger") will serve as an authorized distributor of

WEST COAST ENERGY SYSTEMS LLC for the services described herein. In that capacity, Grainger will perform in accordance with underlying CITY

OF SAN FERNANDO/Grainger contract terms and conditions as modified by any additional agreed upon WEST COAST ENERGY SYSTEMS LLC

terms and conditions applicable to this sourced service proposal, and will ensure WEST COAST ENERGY SYSTEMS LLC performance is equally as

compliant with agreed upon sourced service proposal terms and conditions. Client acknowledges and agrees that Grainger, as the distributor of this

sourced service, will not perform any of the services described herein, including, but not limited to, any work on site, supervision, inspection,

coordination, scheduling, project management or other task normally provided by a provider of such services.

One or more items may be non-cancelable /non-returnable. Please see item notes below.

  Line Description MFG Part Lead Time Qty. Unit Quote Extended
No Bus.days Price Price

   10 SD100  120 1 EA     79,274.60     79,274.60 

GENERAC INDUSTRIAL POWER DIESEL

GENERATOR SD100

Mfr Brand Name GENERAC

Customer Part No.: 

Carrier: 11111 - DEFAULT CARRIER

Cost expiration date: 05/20/2023

Taxable: NO

Notes: Product is Non-Cancelable/Non-Returnable.

Generac Industrial Power Diesel Engine-Driven Generator Set with the

following features and

accessories:

# SD100 Standby rated, 100kW Rating, wired for 120/208V., 3Phase, 4Wire

Information
Grainger Quote Number

Print Date

Customer Account

Department Number

Contact Name

Contact Phone

Contact Fax

Contact Email

Customer PO

Customer Job Name

2054055820

04/21/2023

819379686

RODRIGO MORA

8184384112

rmora@sfcity.org

ATTACHMENT "B"
May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 16 of 99



800-Grainger

www.grainger.com

    Page 2   / 4  

       Thank You!

WW GRAINGER FINDMRO BRANCH

FINDMRO BRANCH

100 GRAINGER PKWY

LAKE FOREST IL  60045-5201

Customer Quotation.

            # Soundproof Enclosure rated for Outdoor Installation with PM Filter

            Prep

            # Sub Base Fuel Tank 220 Gallon (30 hrs) with Standard Options, 7.5

            Gallon Fill/Spill Box, Normal 2# Vent 12#

            Extended, OPV

            # UL2200, EPA Certified, SCAQMD Pre-Certified

            # PowerZone 410 Control Panel

            o Meets NFPA 99 and 110 requirements

            o 2-wire start controls for any 2-wire transfer switch

            # Battery Charger, 10 Amp, installed

            # 925 CCA Batteries, with rack, installed

            # Coolant Heater, 1500W, 120VAC

            # Engine Run Relay, 120V GFCI and 240V Outlets

            # -1- MLCB 400Amp., 100% rated, Therm/Mag

            # -1- MLCB 400Amp., 80% rated, Therm/Mag for Load bank Connection

            # Standard Factory Load Test at reactive (0.8) power factor

            # Standard 2-Year Comprehensive Warranty (P/L/T)

            SHIPPED LOOSE ITEMS

            # -3- O&M Manuals

            # -1- 12# Normal Vent Pipe 2#

            # -1- PM Filter + Installation Materials

            # -1- Remote Annunciator

            # -1- Remote E-stop

   20 TX400  120                 1 EA      5,615.58      5,615.58 

GENERAC INDUSTRIAL POWER DIESEL ATS,

400AMP, 4POLE, 120/208V, 3PHASE, 4WIRE,

NEMA1

Information
Grainger Quote Number

Print Date

Customer Account

Page

2054055820

04/21/2023

819379686

2   / 4  

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 17 of 99



800-Grainger

www.grainger.com

    Page 3   / 4  

       Thank You!

WW GRAINGER FINDMRO BRANCH

FINDMRO BRANCH

100 GRAINGER PKWY

LAKE FOREST IL  60045-5201

Customer Quotation.

Mfr Brand Name GENERAC

Customer Part No.: 

Carrier: 11111 - DEFAULT CARRIER

Cost expiration date: 05/20/2023

Taxable: NO

Notes: Product is Non-Cancelable/Non-Returnable.

            Generac Industrial Power Automatic Transfer Switch with the following

            features and accessories:

            # 400Amp, 4Pole, 4Wire wired for 120/208V., 3Phase, NEMA1

            # UL2200, IBC Seismic Certified

   30 START UP

SERVICE

 120                 1 EA      4,128.75      4,128.75 

START/TEST WITH BUILDING TRANSFER

TEST, PM FILTER BASELINE TEST AND

TRAINING

Mfr Brand Name GENERAC

Customer Part No.: 

Carrier: 11111 - DEFAULT CARRIER

Cost expiration date: 05/20/2023

Taxable: NO

Notes: Product is Non-Cancelable/Non-Returnable.

            Services:

            # Standard Generator Start/Test (after Installation by others) including

            Building Transfer Test

            # PM Filter Baseline Site Test

            # Standard Training during Start/Test

Information
Grainger Quote Number

Print Date

Customer Account

Page

2054055820

04/21/2023

819379686

3   / 4  

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 18 of 99



800-Grainger

www.grainger.com

    Page 4   / 4  

       Thank You!

WW GRAINGER FINDMRO BRANCH

FINDMRO BRANCH

100 GRAINGER PKWY

LAKE FOREST IL  60045-5201

Customer Quotation.

Total Sell Price in  USD            89,018.93 

This is not an invoice. Changes to product or quantities may result in different pricing. Availability and lead times are subject to change and can be confirmed at order

placement. Additional lead time may apply for AK and HI. Unless otherwise stated, these items are sold for domestic consumption in the United States. If exported,

purchaser assumes full responsibility for compliance with U. S. export control. Contact Sales Rep.or Grainger branch listed below for questions, order placement or to

submit a new request. RETURN POLICY: Sourced Product is subject to the manufacturer's return policy and may not be returnable. Please contact Grainger at

Customer Care at 1-800-GRAINGER (472-4643) to verify whether your Sourced Product item(s) can be returned. A restocking fee and other charges may apply.

Returned Sourced Product must be in new/unused and in original packaging. Customer is responsible for return shipping costs for Sourced Products No cancellations,

refunds or credits are allowed for items marked in Sourced Product quotations or invoices as  "Non-Cancellable" or "Non-Returnable".

Information
Grainger Quote Number

Print Date

Customer Account

Page

2054055820

04/21/2023

819379686

4   / 4  

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 19 of 99



091422-WWG 

Rev. 3/2022             1 

Solicitation Number: RFP #091422 

CONTRACT 

This Contract is between Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 
56479 (Sourcewell) and W.W. Grainger, Inc., 100 Grainger Parkway, Lake Forest, IL 60045, and 
Acklands-Grainger, Inc., 123 Commerce Valley Drive East, Suite 700, Thornhill, ON L3T 7W8, 
collectively referred to in the attached Proposal as, “Grainger North America” (separately and 
collectively herein, Supplier). 

Sourcewell is a State of Minnesota local government unit and service cooperative created 
under the laws of the State of Minnesota (Minnesota Statutes Section 123A.21) that offers 
cooperative procurement solutions to government entities. Participation is open to eligible 
federal, state/province, and municipal governmental entities, higher education, K-12 education, 
nonprofit, tribal government, and other public entities located in the United States and Canada. 
Sourcewell issued a public solicitation for Facility MRO, Industrial, and Building-Related Supplies 
and Equipment from which Supplier was awarded a contract.     

Supplier desires to contract with Sourcewell to provide equipment, products, or services to 
Sourcewell and the entities that access Sourcewell’s cooperative purchasing contracts 
(Participating Entities).  

1. TERM OF CONTRACT

A. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Contract is effective upon the date of the final signature below.

B. EXPIRATION DATE AND EXTENSION. This Contract expires November 8, 2026, unless it is
cancelled sooner pursuant to Article 22. This Contract may be extended up to two times, for
one additional year per extension, upon the request of Sourcewell and written agreement by
Supplier.

C. SURVIVAL OF TERMS. Notwithstanding any expiration or termination of this Contract, all
payment obligations incurred prior to expiration or termination will survive, as will the
following: Articles 11 through 14 survive the expiration or cancellation of this Contract. All
other rights will cease upon expiration or termination of this Contract.

ATTACHMENT "C"May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 20 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           2 
 

2. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES 
 
A. EQUIPMENT, PRODUCTS, OR SERVICES. Supplier will provide the Equipment, Products, or 
Services as stated in its Proposal submitted under the Solicitation Number listed above. 
Supplier’s Equipment, Products, or Services Proposal (Proposal) is attached and incorporated 
into this Contract.    
 
All Equipment and Products provided under this Contract must be new and the current model.  
Supplier may offer close-out or refurbished Equipment or Products if they are clearly indicated 
in Supplier’s product and pricing list. Unless agreed to by the Participating Entities in advance, 
Equipment or Products must be delivered as operational to the Participating Entity’s site.     
 
This Contract offers an indefinite quantity of sales, and while substantial volume is anticipated, 
sales and sales volume are not guaranteed.   
 
B. WARRANTY. Supplier warrants that all Equipment, Products, and Services furnished are free 
from liens and encumbrances, and are free from defects in design, materials, and workmanship. 
In addition, Supplier warrants the Equipment, Products, and Services are suitable for and will 
perform in accordance with the ordinary use for which they are intended. Supplier’s standard 
product warranty policy for Participating Entity purchases in the US or Canada (as revised from 
time-to-time) are available on the grainger.com and grainger.ca websites, respectively, and are 
incorporated by reference. Supplier’s dealers and distributors must agree to assist the 
Participating Entity in reaching a resolution in any dispute over warranty terms with the 
manufacturer.  Any manufacturer’s warranty that extends beyond the expiration of the 
Supplier’s warranty will be passed on to the Participating Entity.   
 
C. DEALERS, DISTRIBUTORS, AND/OR RESELLERS. Upon Contract execution and throughout 
the Contract term, Supplier will make available to Sourcewell, upon Sourcewell request, a 
current means to validate or authenticate Supplier’s authorized resellers relative to the 
Equipment, Products, and Services offered under this Contract, which will be incorporated into 
this Contract by reference.  
 

3. PRICING 
 
All Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract will be priced at or below the price 
stated in Supplier’s Proposal.  
 
When providing pricing quotes to Participating Entities, all pricing quoted must reflect a 
Participating Entity’s total cost of acquisition, which may include a separate line item for freight 
other than standard ground shipment as described in the attached Proposal. This means that 
the quoted cost, with such additional freight on non-standard ground shipments, is for 
delivered Equipment, Products, and Services that are operational for their intended purpose, 
and includes all costs to the Participating Entity’s requested delivery location.   

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 21 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           3 
 

 
Regardless of the payment method chosen by the Participating Entity, the total cost associated 
with any purchase option of the Equipment, Products, or Services must always be disclosed in 
the pricing quote to the applicable Participating Entity at the time of purchase.   
 
A. SHIPPING AND SHIPPING COSTS. All delivered Equipment and Products must be properly 
packaged. Damaged Equipment and Products may be rejected. If the damage is not readily 
apparent at the time of delivery, Supplier must permit the Equipment and Products to be 
returned within a reasonable time at no cost to Sourcewell or its Participating Entities. 
Participating Entities reserve the right to inspect the Equipment and Products at a reasonable 
time after delivery where circumstances or conditions prevent effective inspection of the 
Equipment and Products at the time of delivery. In the event of the delivery of nonconforming 
Equipment and Products, the Participating Entity will notify the Supplier as soon as possible and 
the Supplier will replace nonconforming Equipment and Products with conforming Equipment 
and Products that are acceptable to the Participating Entity. Supplier’s standard product return 
policy for Participating Entity purchases in the US or Canada (as revised from time-to-time) are 
available on the grainger.com and grainger.ca websites, respectively, and are incorporated by 
reference. 
   
Supplier must arrange for and pay for the return shipment on Equipment and Products that arrive 
in a defective or inoperable condition.  
 
Sourcewell may declare the Supplier in breach of this Contract if the Supplier intentionally 
delivers substandard or inferior Equipment or Products.  
 
B. SALES TAX. Each Participating Entity is responsible for supplying the Supplier with valid tax-
exemption certification(s). When ordering, a Participating Entity must indicate if it is a tax-
exempt entity.  
 
C. HOT LIST PRICING. At any time during this Contract, Supplier may offer a specific selection 
of Equipment, Products, or Services at discounts greater than those listed in the Contract. 
When Supplier determines it will offer Hot List Pricing, it must be submitted electronically to 
Sourcewell in a line-item format. Equipment, Products, or Services may be added or removed 
from the Hot List at any time through a Sourcewell Price and Product Change Form as defined 
in Article 4 below.   
 
Hot List program and pricing may also be used to discount and liquidate close-out and 
discontinued Equipment and Products as long as those close-out and discontinued items are 
clearly identified as such. Current ordering process and administrative fees apply. Hot List 
Pricing must be published and made available to all Participating Entities. Supplier’s Proposal 
includes additional detail regarding its Hot List program for U.S. and Canadian Participating 
Entities. 
 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 22 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           4 
 

4. PRODUCT AND PRICING CHANGE REQUESTS 
 

Supplier may request Equipment, Product, or Service changes, additions, or deletions at any 
time. All requests must be made in writing by submitting a signed Sourcewell Price and Product 
Change Request Form to the assigned Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator. This 
approved form is available from the assigned Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator. 
At a minimum, the request must:  
 

 Identify the applicable Sourcewell contract number; 
 Clearly specify the requested change; 
 Provide sufficient detail to justify the requested change; 
 Individually list all Equipment, Products, or Services affected by the requested change, 

along with the requested change (e.g., addition, deletion, price change); and 
 Include a complete restatement of pricing documentation in Microsoft Excel with the 

effective date of the modified pricing, or product addition or deletion. The new pricing 
restatement must include all Equipment, Products, and Services offered, even for those 
items where pricing remains unchanged. 

 
A fully executed Sourcewell Price and Product Request Form will become an amendment 
to this Contract and will be incorporated by reference. Supplier will not be required to 
produce third-party confidential or proprietary information as justification for a requested 
price change, however, Sourcewell will make its determination on a price change request 
based on the information provided. 

 
5. PARTICIPATION, CONTRACT ACCESS, AND PARTICIPATING ENTITY REQUIREMENTS 

  
A. PARTICIPATION. Sourcewell’s cooperative contracts are available and open to public and 
nonprofit entities across the United States and Canada; such as federal, state/province, 
municipal, K-12 and higher education, tribal government, and other public entities.   
 
The benefits of this Contract should be available to all Participating Entities that can legally 
access the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract. A Participating Entity’s 
authority to access this Contract is determined through its cooperative purchasing, interlocal, 
or joint powers laws. Any entity accessing benefits of this Contract will be considered a Service 
Member of Sourcewell during such time of access. A Participating Entity may be required by 
Supplier to document the Participating Entity’s affiliation to this Contract prior to accessing the 
benefits of this Contract. Supplier understands that a Participating Entity’s use of this Contract 
is at the Participating Entity’s sole convenience and Participating Entities reserve the right to 
obtain like Equipment, Products, or Services from any other source. 
 
Supplier is responsible for familiarizing its sales and service forces with Sourcewell contract use 
eligibility requirements and documentation and will encourage potential participating entities 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 23 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           5 
 

to join Sourcewell.  Sourcewell reserves the right to add and remove Participating Entities to its 
roster during the term of this Contract.   
 
B. PUBLIC FACILITIES. Supplier’s employees may be required to perform work at government-
owned facilities, including schools. Supplier’s employees and agents must conduct themselves 
in a professional manner while on the premises, and in accordance with Participating Entity 
policies and procedures, and all applicable laws.   
 

6. PARTICIPATING ENTITY USE AND PURCHASING 
 
A. ORDERS AND PAYMENT. To access the contracted Equipment, Products, or Services under 
this Contract, a Participating Entity must clearly indicate to Supplier that it intends to access this 
Contract; however, order flow and procedure will be developed jointly between Sourcewell and 
Supplier. Typically, a Participating Entity will issue an order directly to Supplier or its authorized 
subsidiary, distributor, dealer, or reseller. If a Participating Entity issues a purchase order, it 
may use its own forms, but the purchase order should clearly note the applicable Sourcewell 
contract number. All Participating Entity orders under this Contract must be issued prior to 
expiration or cancellation of this Contract; however, Supplier performance, Participating Entity 
payment obligations, and any applicable warranty periods or other Supplier or Participating 
Entity obligations may extend beyond the term of this Contract.  
 
Supplier’s acceptable forms of payment and payment terms are included in its attached 
Proposal.  Participating Entities will be solely responsible for payment and Sourcewell will have 
no liability for any unpaid invoice of any Participating Entity.   
 
B. ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS/PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM. Additional terms and 
conditions to a purchase order, or other required transaction documentation, may be 
negotiated between a Participating Entity and Supplier, such as job or industry-specific 
requirements, orders for non-catalog sourced products or services, legal requirements (e.g., 
affirmative action or immigration status requirements), or specific local policy requirements. 
Some Participating Entities may require the use of a Participating Addendum, the terms of 
which will be negotiated directly between the Participating Entity and the Supplier or its 
authorized dealers, distributors, or resellers, as applicable.  Any negotiated additional terms 
and conditions must never be less favorable to the Participating Entity than what is contained in 
this Contract. 
 
C. SPECIALIZED SERVICE REQUIREMENTS. In the event that the Participating Entity requires 
service or specialized performance requirements not addressed in this Contract (such as e-
commerce specifications, specialized delivery requirements, or other specifications and 
requirements), the Participating Entity and the Supplier may enter into a separate, standalone 
agreement, apart from this Contract. Sourcewell, including its agents and employees, will not 
be made a party to a claim for breach of such agreement.   
 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 24 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           6 
 

D. TERMINATION OF ORDERS. Participating Entities may terminate an order, in whole or 
in part, immediately upon notice to Supplier in the event of any of the following events:   
 

1. The Participating Entity fails to receive funding or appropriation from its governing body 
at levels sufficient to pay for the equipment, products, or services to be purchased; or 
2. Federal, state, or provincial laws or regulations prohibit the purchase or change the 
Participating Entity’s requirements. 

 
E. GOVERNING LAW AND VENUE. The governing law and venue for any action related to a 
Participating Entity’s order will be determined by the Participating Entity making the purchase.   
 

7. CUSTOMER SERVICE 
 
A. PRIMARY ACCOUNT REPRESENTATIVE. Supplier will assign an Account Representative to 
Sourcewell for this Contract and must provide prompt notice to Sourcewell if that person is 
changed. The Account Representative will be responsible for: 
  

 Maintenance and management of this Contract; 
 Timely response to all Sourcewell and Participating Entity inquiries; and 
 Business reviews to Sourcewell and Participating Entities, if applicable. 

 
B. BUSINESS REVIEWS. Supplier must perform a minimum of one business review with 
Sourcewell per contract year. The business review will cover sales to Participating Entities, 
pricing and contract terms, administrative fees, sales data reports, performance issues, supply 
issues, customer issues, and any other necessary information.  
 

8. REPORT ON CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY AND ADMINISTRATIVE FEE PAYMENT 
 
A. CONTRACT SALES ACTIVITY REPORT. Each calendar quarter, Supplier must provide a 
contract sales activity report (Report) to the Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator 
assigned to this Contract. Reports are due no later than 45 days after the end of each calendar 
quarter. A Report must be provided regardless of the number or amount of sales during that 
quarter (i.e., if there are no sales, Supplier must submit a report indicating no sales were 
made).  
 
The Report must contain the following fields: 
 

 Participating Entity Name (e.g., City of Staples Highway Department); 
 Participating Entity Physical Street Address; 
 Participating Entity City; 
 Participating Entity State/Province; 
 Participating Entity Zip/Postal Code; 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 25 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           7 
 

 Participating Entity Contact Name; 
 Participating Entity Contact Email Address; 
 Participating Entity Contact Telephone Number; 
 Sourcewell Assigned Entity/Participating Entity Number; 
 Item Purchased Description; 
 Item Purchased Price;  
 Sourcewell Administrative Fee Applied; and 
 Date Purchase was invoiced/sale was recognized as revenue by Supplier. 

 
B. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE. In consideration for the support and services provided by Sourcewell, 
the Supplier will pay an administrative fee to Sourcewell on all Equipment, Products, and 
Services provided to Participating Entities less returns, credits, tax, and additional freight 
handling charges. The Administrative Fee must be included in, and not added to, the pricing. 
Supplier may not charge Participating Entities more than the contracted price to offset the 
Administrative Fee. 
 
The Supplier will submit payment to Sourcewell for the percentage of administrative fee stated 
in the Proposal multiplied by the total sales of all Equipment, Products, and Services purchased 
by Participating Entities under this Contract during each calendar quarter. Payments should 
note the Supplier’s name and Sourcewell-assigned contract number in the memo; and must be 
mailed to the address above “Attn: Accounts Receivable” or remitted electronically to 
Sourcewell’s banking institution per Sourcewell’s Finance department instructions. Payments 
must be received no later than 45 calendar days after the end of each calendar quarter. 

 
Supplier agrees to cooperate with Sourcewell in auditing transactions under this Contract to 
ensure that the administrative fee is paid on all items purchased under this Contract. 

 
In the event the Supplier is delinquent in any undisputed administrative fees, Sourcewell 
reserves the right to cancel this Contract and reject any proposal submitted by the Supplier in 
any subsequent solicitation. In the event this Contract is cancelled by either party prior to the 
Contract’s expiration date, the administrative fee payment will be due no more than 30 days 
from the cancellation date.  
 

9. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Sourcewell's Authorized Representative is its Chief Procurement Officer.   

 
Supplier’s Authorized Representative is the person named in the Supplier’s Proposal. If 
Supplier’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, Supplier must 
promptly notify Sourcewell in writing. 

 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 26 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           8 
 

10. AUDIT, ASSIGNMENT, AMENDMENTS, WAIVER, AND CONTRACT COMPLETE 
 
A. AUDIT. Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 16C.05, subdivision 5, the books, records, 
documents, and accounting procedures and practices relevant to this Contract are subject to 
examination by Sourcewell or the Minnesota State Auditor for a minimum of six years from the 
end of this Contract. This clause extends to Participating Entities as it relates to business 
conducted by that Participating Entity under this Contract. 
 
B. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party may assign or otherwise transfer its rights or obligations under 
this Contract without the prior written consent of the other party and a fully executed 
assignment agreement. Such consent will not be unreasonably withheld. Any prohibited 
assignment will be invalid.    
 
C. AMENDMENTS. Any amendment to this Contract must be in writing and will not be effective 
until it has been duly executed by the parties.   
 
D. WAIVER. Failure by either party to take action or assert any right under this Contract will 
not be deemed a waiver of such right in the event of the continuation or repetition of the 
circumstances giving rise to such right. Any such waiver must be in writing and signed by the 
parties. 
 
E. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This Contract represents the complete agreement between the 
parties. No other understanding regarding this Contract, whether written or oral, may be used 
to bind either party. For any conflict between the attached Proposal and the terms set out in 
Articles 1-22 of this Contract, the terms of Articles 1-22 will govern. 
 
F. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES. The relationship of the parties is one of independent 
contractors, each free to exercise judgment and discretion with regard to the conduct of their 
respective businesses. This Contract does not create a partnership, joint venture, or any other 
relationship such as master-servant, or principal-agent.  
 

11. INDEMNITY AND HOLD HARMLESS 
  

Supplier must indemnify, defend, save, and hold Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, 
including their agents and employees, harmless from any claims or causes of action, including 
attorneys’ fees incurred by Sourcewell or its Participating Entities, arising out of any negligent 
or intentional act or omission in the performance of this Contract by the Supplier or its agents 
or employees; this indemnification includes injury or death to person(s) or property alleged to 
have been caused by Supplier’s negligent or intentional act or omission causing some defect in 
the Equipment, Products, or Services under this Contract to the extent the Equipment, Product, 
or Service has been used according to its specifications. Sourcewell’s responsibility will be 
governed by the State of Minnesota’s Tort Liability Act (Minnesota Statutes Chapter 466) and 
other applicable law. 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 27 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           9 
 

 
12. GOVERNMENT DATA PRACTICES 

 
Supplier and Sourcewell must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, 
Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, as it applies to all data provided by or provided to Sourcewell 
under this Contract and as it applies to all data created, collected, received, maintained, or 
disseminated by the Supplier under this Contract.  
 

13. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY, PUBLICITY, MARKETING, AND ENDORSEMENT 
 

A. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
1. Grant of License. During the term of this Contract: 

a. Sourcewell grants to Supplier a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use the trademark(s) provided to Supplier by Sourcewell in advertising and 
promotional materials for the purpose of marketing Sourcewell’s relationship with 
Supplier. 
b. Supplier grants to Sourcewell a royalty-free, worldwide, non-exclusive right and 
license to use Supplier’s trademarks in advertising and promotional materials for the 
purpose of marketing Supplier’s relationship with Sourcewell. 

2. Limited Right of Sublicense. The right and license granted herein includes a limited right 
of each party to grant sublicenses to their respective subsidiaries, distributors, dealers, 
resellers, marketing representatives, and agents (collectively “Permitted Sublicensees”) in 
advertising and promotional materials for the purpose of marketing the Parties’ relationship 
to Participating Entities. Any sublicense granted will be subject to the terms and conditions 
of this Article. Each party will be responsible for any breach of this Article by any of their 
respective sublicensees.  
3. Use; Quality Control.  

a. Neither party may alter the other party’s trademarks from the form provided 
and must comply with removal requests as to specific uses of its trademarks or 
logos.   
b. Each party agrees to use, and to cause its Permitted Sublicensees to use, the 
other party’s trademarks only in good faith and in a dignified manner consistent with 
such party’s use of the trademarks. Each party has the right to inspect the other 
party’s use of the licensed trademarks and the advertising and promotional 
materials used in connection with the licensed trademarks. Upon written notice to 
the breaching party, the breaching party has 30 days of the date of the written 
notice to cure the breach or the license will be terminated.  

4. Termination. Upon the termination of this Contract for any reason, each party, including 
Permitted Sublicensees, will have 30 days to remove all Trademarks from signage, websites, 
and the like bearing the other party’s name or logo (excepting Sourcewell’s pre-printed 
catalog of suppliers which may be used until the next printing).  Supplier must return all 
marketing and promotional materials, including signage, provided by Sourcewell, or dispose 
of it according to Sourcewell’s written directions. 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 28 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           10 
 

 
B. PUBLICITY. Any publicity regarding the subject matter of this Contract must not be released 
without prior written approval from the Authorized Representatives. Publicity includes notices, 
informational pamphlets, press releases, research, reports, signs, and similar public notices 
prepared by or for the Supplier individually or jointly with others, or any subcontractors, with 
respect to the program, publications, or services provided resulting from this Contract. 
 
C. MARKETING. Any direct advertising, marketing, or offers with Participating Entities must be 
approved by Sourcewell. Send all approval requests to the Sourcewell Supplier Development 
Administrator assigned to this Contract. Once approved, marketing material can be used by 
Supplier for engagement with potential or existing Participating Entities.  
 
D. ENDORSEMENT. The Supplier must not claim that Sourcewell endorses its Equipment, 
Products, or Services. 

 
14. GOVERNING LAW, JURISDICTION, AND VENUE 

 
The substantive and procedural laws of the State of Minnesota will govern this Contract. Venue 
for all legal proceedings arising out of this Contract, or its breach, must be in the appropriate 
state court in Todd County, Minnesota or federal court in Fergus Falls, Minnesota.  
 

15. FORCE MAJEURE 
 
Neither party to this Contract will be held responsible for delay or default caused by acts of God 
or other conditions that are beyond that party’s reasonable control. A party claiming Force 
Majeure must provide the other party prompt written notice. 
 

16. SEVERABILITY 
 
If any provision of this Contract is found by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal, 
unenforceable, or void then both parties will be relieved from all obligations arising from that 
provision. If the remainder of this Contract is capable of being performed, it will not be affected 
by such determination or finding and must be fully performed. 
 

17. PERFORMANCE, DEFAULT, AND REMEDIES 
 
A. PERFORMANCE. During the term of this Contract, the parties will monitor performance and 
address unresolved contract issues as follows:  
 

1. Notification. The parties must promptly notify each other of any known dispute and 
work in good faith to resolve such dispute within a reasonable period of time. If necessary, 
Sourcewell and the Supplier will jointly develop a short briefing document that describes 
the issue(s), relevant impact, and positions of both parties.  

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 29 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           11 
 

2. Escalation. If parties are unable to resolve the issue in a timely manner, as specified 
above, either Sourcewell or Supplier may escalate the resolution of the issue to a higher 
level of management. The Supplier will have 30 calendar days to cure an outstanding issue.  
3. Performance while Dispute is Pending. Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the 
Supplier must continue without delay to carry out all of its responsibilities under the 
Contract that are not affected by the dispute. If the Supplier fails to continue without delay 
to perform its responsibilities under the Contract, in the accomplishment of all undisputed 
work, the Supplier will bear any additional costs incurred by Sourcewell and/or its 
Participating Entities as a result of such failure to proceed. This subparagraph 3 does not 
apply to invoice payment disputes in jurisdictions in which contract law requires Supplier to 
mitigate its damages. 

 
B. DEFAULT AND REMEDIES. Either of the following constitutes cause to declare this Contract, 
or any Participating Entity order under this Contract, in default:   

 
1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements, or  
2. A material breach of any term or condition of this Contract.   

 
The party claiming default must provide written notice of the default, with 30 calendar days to 
cure the default. Time allowed for cure will not diminish or eliminate any liability damages. If 
the default remains after the opportunity for cure, the non-defaulting party may: 
 

 Exercise any remedy provided by law or equity, or 
 Terminate the Contract or any portion thereof, including any orders issued against the 

Contract. 
 

18. INSURANCE 
  
A. REQUIREMENTS. At its own expense, Supplier must maintain insurance policy(ies) in effect 
at all times during the performance of this Contract with insurance company(ies) licensed or 
authorized to do business in the State of Minnesota having an “AM BEST” rating of A- or better, 
with coverage and limits of insurance not less than the following:  

 
1. Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation: As required by any applicable law or regulation.  
Employer's Liability Insurance: must be provided in amounts not less than listed below: 

Minimum limits: 
$500,000 each accident for bodily injury by accident 
$500,000 policy limit for bodily injury by disease 
$500,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease 

  
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance. Supplier will maintain insurance covering its 
operations, with coverage on an occurrence basis, and must be subject to terms no less 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 30 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           12 
 

broad than the Insurance Services Office (“ISO”) Commercial General Liability Form 
CG0001 (2001 or newer edition), or equivalent. At a minimum, coverage must include 
liability arising from premises, operations, bodily injury and property damage, 
independent contractors, products-completed operations including construction defect, 
contractual liability, blanket contractual liability, and personal injury and advertising 
injury. All required limits, terms and conditions of coverage must be maintained during 
the term of this Contract. 

 Minimum Limits:  
$1,000,000 each occurrence Bodily Injury and Property Damage 
$1,000,000 Personal and Advertising Injury 
$2,000,000 aggregate for products liability-completed operations  
$2,000,000 general aggregate 

 
3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Supplier will maintain insurance covering all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles 
in limits of liability not less than indicated below. The coverage must be subject to terms 
no less broad than ISO Business Auto Coverage Form CA 0001 (2010 edition or newer), 
or equivalent. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$1,000,000 each accident, combined single limit 

 
4. Umbrella Insurance. During the term of this Contract, Supplier will maintain 
umbrella coverage over Employer’s Liability, Commercial General Liability, and 
Commercial Automobile. 

 Minimum Limits: 
$2,000,000  

 
5. Network Security and Privacy Liability Insurance. During the term of this Contract, 
Supplier will maintain coverage for network security and privacy liability. The coverage 
may be endorsed on another form of liability coverage or written on a standalone 
policy. The insurance must cover claims which may arise from failure of Supplier’s 
security resulting in, but not limited to, computer attacks, unauthorized access, 
disclosure of not public data – including but not limited to, confidential or private 
information, transmission of a computer virus, or denial of service.  

 Minimum limits:  
$2,000,000 per occurrence 
$2,000,000 annual aggregate 

 
Failure of Supplier to maintain the required insurance will constitute a material breach entitling 
Sourcewell to immediately terminate this Contract for default.  
 
B. CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE. Prior to commencing under this Contract, Supplier must 
furnish to Sourcewell a certificate of insurance, as evidence of the insurance required under this 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 31 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           13 
 

Contract. Prior to expiration of the policy(ies), renewal certificates must be mailed to 
Sourcewell, 202 12th Street Northeast, P.O. Box 219, Staples, MN 56479 or sent to the 
Sourcewell Supplier Development Administrator assigned to this Contract. The certificates must 
be signed by a person authorized by the insurer(s) to bind coverage on their behalf. 
 
Failure to request certificates of insurance by Sourcewell, or failure of Supplier to provide 
certificates of insurance, in no way limits or relieves Supplier of its duties and responsibilities in 
this Contract. 
 
C. ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT AND PRIMARY AND NON-CONTRIBUTORY 
INSURANCE CLAUSE. Supplier agrees to list Sourcewell and its Participating Entities, including 
their officers, agents, and employees, as an additional insured under the Supplier’s commercial 
general liability insurance policy with respect to liability arising out of activities, “operations,” or 
“work” performed by or on behalf of Supplier, and products and completed operations of 
Supplier. The policy provision(s) or endorsement(s) must further provide that coverage is 
primary and not excess over or contributory with any other valid, applicable, and collectible 
insurance or self-insurance in force for the additional insureds.   
 
D. WAIVER OF SUBROGATION. Supplier waives and must require (by endorsement or 
otherwise) all its insurers to waive subrogation rights against Sourcewell and other additional 
insureds for losses paid under the insurance policies required by this Contract or other 
insurance applicable to the Supplier or its subcontractors. The waiver must apply to all 
deductibles and/or self-insured retentions applicable to the required or any other insurance 
maintained by the Supplier or its subcontractors. Where permitted by law, Supplier must 
require similar written express waivers of subrogation and insurance clauses from each of its 
subcontractors.   
 
E. UMBRELLA/EXCESS LIABILITY/SELF-INSURED RETENTION. The limits required by this 
Contract can be met by either providing a primary policy or in combination with 
umbrella/excess liability policy(ies), or self-insured retention. 
 

19. COMPLIANCE 
 
A. LAWS AND REGULATIONS. All Equipment, Products, or Services provided under this 
Contract must comply fully with applicable federal laws and regulations, and with the laws in 
the states and provinces in which the Equipment, Products, or Services are sold.  
 
B. LICENSES. Supplier must maintain a valid and current status on all required federal, 
state/provincial, and local licenses, bonds, and permits required for the operation of the 
business that the Supplier conducts with Sourcewell and Participating Entities. 

 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 32 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           14 
 

20. BANKRUPTCY, DEBARMENT, OR SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION 
 
Supplier certifies and warrants that it is not in bankruptcy or that it has previously disclosed in 
writing certain information to Sourcewell related to bankruptcy actions. If at any time during 
this Contract Supplier declares bankruptcy, Supplier must immediately notify Sourcewell in 
writing. 
 
Supplier certifies and warrants that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from programs 
operated by the State of Minnesota; the United States federal government or the Canadian 
government, as applicable; or any Participating Entity. Supplier certifies and warrants that 
neither it nor its principals have been convicted of a criminal offense related to the subject 
matter of this Contract. Supplier further warrants that it will provide immediate written notice 
to Sourcewell if this certification changes at any time. 
 

21. PROVISIONS FOR NON-UNITED STATES FEDERAL ENTITY PROCUREMENTS UNDER 
UNITED STATES FEDERAL AWARDS OR OTHER AWARDS 

 
Participating Entities that use United States federal grant or FEMA funds to purchase goods or 
services from this Contract may be subject to additional requirements including the 
procurement standards of the Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards, 2 C.F.R. § 200. Participating Entities may have additional 
requirements based on specific funding source terms or conditions. Within this Article, all 
references to “federal” should be interpreted to mean the United States federal government. 
The following list only applies when a Participating Entity accesses Supplier’s Equipment, 
Products, or Services with United States federal funds, and the Participating Entity has provided 
Supplier with advance written notice that additional federal requirements may be applicable. 
 
A. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY. Except as otherwise provided under 41 C.F.R. § 60, all 
contracts that meet the definition of “federally assisted construction contract” in 41 C.F.R. § 60-
1.3 must include the equal opportunity clause provided under 41 C.F.R. §60-1.4(b), in 
accordance with Executive Order 11246, “Equal Employment Opportunity” (30 FR 12319, 
12935, 3 C.F.R. §, 1964-1965 Comp., p. 339), as amended by Executive Order 11375, “Amending 
Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity,” and implementing 
regulations at 41 C.F.R. § 60, “Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal 
Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor.” The equal opportunity clause is incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
B. DAVIS-BACON ACT, AS AMENDED (40 U.S.C. § 3141-3148). When required by federal 
program legislation, all prime construction contracts in excess of $2,000 awarded by non-
federal entities must include a provision for compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. § 
3141-3144, and 3146-3148) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5, 
“Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Covering Federally Financed and Assisted 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 33 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           15 
 

Construction”). In accordance with the statute, contractors must be required to pay wages to 
laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than the prevailing wages specified in a wage 
determination made by the Secretary of Labor. In addition, contractors must be required to pay 
wages not less than once a week. The non-federal entity must place a copy of the current 
prevailing wage determination issued by the Department of Labor in each solicitation. The 
decision to award a contract or subcontract must be conditioned upon the acceptance of the 
wage determination. The non-federal entity must report all suspected or reported violations to 
the federal awarding agency. The contracts must also include a provision for compliance with 
the Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (40 U.S.C. § 3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor 
regulations (29 C.F.R. § 3, “Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work 
Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States”). The Act provides that 
each contractor or subrecipient must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person 
employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the 
compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The non-federal entity must report 
all suspected or reported violations to the federal awarding agency. Supplier must be in 
compliance with all applicable Davis-Bacon Act provisions. 
 
C. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. § 3701-3708). Where 
applicable, all contracts awarded by the non-federal entity in excess of $100,000 that involve 
the employment of mechanics or laborers must include a provision for compliance with 40 
U.S.C. §§ 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 C.F.R. § 5). 
Under 40 U.S.C. § 3702 of the Act, each contractor must be required to compute the wages of 
every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess 
of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of 
not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 
hours in the work week. The requirements of 40 U.S.C. § 3704 are applicable to construction 
work and provide that no laborer or mechanic must be required to work in surroundings or 
under working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous or dangerous. These requirements 
do not apply to the purchases of supplies or materials or articles ordinarily available on the 
open market, or contracts for transportation or transmission of intelligence. This provision is 
hereby incorporated by reference into this Contract. Supplier certifies that during the term of 
an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this procurement process, Supplier must 
comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
D. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT. If the federal award 
meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37 C.F.R. § 401.2(a) and the recipient or 
subrecipient wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization 
regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, 
developmental, or research work under that “funding agreement,” the recipient or subrecipient 
must comply with the requirements of 37 C.F.R. § 401, “Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit 
Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative 
Agreements,” and any implementing regulations issued by the awarding agency. Supplier 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 34 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           16 
 

certifies that during the term of an award for all contracts by Sourcewell resulting from this 
procurement process, Supplier must comply with applicable requirements as referenced above. 
 
E. CLEAN AIR ACT (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671Q.) AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL 
ACT (33 U.S.C. § 1251-1387). Contracts and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000 require 
the non-federal award to agree to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations 
issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401- 7671q) and the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. § 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal 
awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). 
Supplier certifies that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements 
as referenced above. 
 
F. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION (EXECUTIVE ORDERS 12549 AND 12689). A contract award 
(see 2 C.F.R. § 180.220) must not be made to parties listed on the government wide exclusions 
in the System for Award Management (SAM), in accordance with the OMB guidelines at 2 C.F.R. 
§180 that implement Executive Orders 12549 (3 C.F.R. § 1986 Comp., p. 189) and 12689 (3 
C.F.R. § 1989 Comp., p. 235), “Debarment and Suspension.” SAM Exclusions contains the names 
of parties debarred, suspended, or otherwise excluded by agencies, as well as parties declared 
ineligible under statutory or regulatory authority other than Executive Order 12549. Supplier 
certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for 
debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation by any federal 
department or agency. 
 
G. BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, AS AMENDED (31 U.S.C. § 1352). Suppliers must file 
any required certifications. Suppliers must not have used federal appropriated funds to pay any 
person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any 
agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member 
of Congress in connection with obtaining any federal contract, grant, or any other award 
covered by 31 U.S.C. § 1352. Suppliers must disclose any lobbying with non-federal funds that 
takes place in connection with obtaining any federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded 
from tier to tier up to the non-federal award. Suppliers must file all certifications and 
disclosures required by, and otherwise comply with, the Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 
U.S.C. § 1352). 
 
H. RECORD RETENTION REQUIREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Supplier must comply with 
the record retention requirements detailed in 2 C.F.R. § 200.333. The Supplier further certifies 
that it will retain all records as required by 2 C.F.R. § 200.333 for a period of 3 years after 
grantees or subgrantees submit final expenditure reports or quarterly or annual financial 
reports, as applicable, and all other pending matters are closed. 
 
I. ENERGY POLICY AND CONSERVATION ACT COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, Supplier 
must comply with the mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 35 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           17 
 

contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy 
and Conservation Act. 
 
J. BUY AMERICAN PROVISIONS COMPLIANCE. To the extent applicable, and following 
consultation with the Participating Entity to assess Supplier’s ability to comply, Supplier must 
comply with all applicable provisions of the Buy American Act. Purchases made in accordance 
with the Buy American Act must follow the applicable procurement rules calling for free and 
open competition. 
 
K. ACCESS TO RECORDS (2 C.F.R. § 200.336). Supplier agrees that duly authorized 
representatives of a federal agency must have access to any books, documents, papers and 
records of Supplier that are directly pertinent to Supplier’s discharge of its obligations under 
this Contract for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. The 
right also includes timely and reasonable access to Supplier’s personnel for the purpose of 
interview and discussion relating to such documents. 
 
L. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS (2 C.F.R. § 200.322). A non-federal entity that is 
a state agency or agency of a political subdivision of a state and its contractors must comply 
with Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource Conservation 
and Recovery Act. The requirements of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in 
guidelines of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. § 247 that contain the 
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining a 
satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds $10,000 or the 
value of the quantity acquired during the preceding fiscal year exceeded $10,000; procuring 
solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; 
and establishing an affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials 
identified in the EPA guidelines.  
 
M. FEDERAL SEAL(S), LOGOS, AND FLAGS. The Supplier cannot use the seal(s), logos, crests, or 
reproductions of flags or likenesses of Federal agency officials without specific pre-approval.  
 
N. NO OBLIGATION BY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT. The U.S. federal government is not a party to 
this Contract or any purchase by a Participating Entity and is not subject to any obligations or 
liabilities to the Participating Entity, Supplier, or any other party pertaining to any matter 
resulting from the Contract or any purchase by an authorized user.  
 
O. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS. The 
Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and 
Statements) applies to the Supplier’s actions pertaining to this Contract or any purchase by a 
Participating Entity.  
 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 36 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           18 
 

P. FEDERAL DEBT. The Supplier certifies that it is non-delinquent in its repayment of any 
federal debt.  Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroll and other taxes, audit 
disallowance, and benefit overpayments.  
 
Q. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST. The Supplier must notify the U.S. Office of General Services, 
Sourcewell, and Participating Entity as soon as possible if this Contract or any aspect related to 
the anticipated work under this Contract raises an actual or potential conflict of interest (as 
described in 2 C.F.R. Part 200).  The Supplier must explain the actual or potential conflict in 
writing in sufficient detail so that the U.S. Office of General Services, Sourcewell, and 
Participating Entity are able to assess the actual or potential conflict; and provide any additional 
information as necessary or requested.  
 
R. U.S. EXECUTIVE ORDER 13224. The Supplier, and its subcontractors, must comply with U.S. 
Executive Order 13224 and U.S. Laws that prohibit transactions with and provision of resources 
and support to individuals and organizations associated with terrorism. 
 
S. PROHIBITION ON CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR 
EQUIPMENT. To the extent applicable, Supplier certifies that during the term of this Contract it 
will comply with applicable requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 200.216. 
 
T. DOMESTIC PREFERENCES FOR PROCUREMENTS. To the extent applicable, Supplier certifies 
that during the term of this Contract will comply with applicable requirements of 2 C.F.R. § 
200.322. 
 

22. CANCELLATION 
 

Sourcewell or Supplier may cancel this Contract at any time, with or without cause, upon 60 
days’ written notice to the other party. However, Sourcewell may cancel this Contract 
immediately upon discovery of a material defect in any certification made in Supplier’s 
Proposal.  Cancellation of this Contract does not relieve either party of financial, product, or 
service obligations incurred or accrued prior to cancellation. 
 

Sourcewell             W.W. Grainger, Inc. 
 
 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Jeremy Schwartz Allison Darling 

Title: Chief Procurement Officer Title: Sr. National Government Sales Manager 
Grainger US 

 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Date: ________________________ 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 37 of 99



091422-WWG 
 

Rev. 3/2022                           19 
 

 
 
 
Approved:          Acklands-Grainger, Inc. 
 
 
 

 

By: __________________________ By: __________________________ 
Chad Coauette        Marty Luciw 

Title: Executive Director/CEO Title:  Sr. Government Sales Manager 
 
Date: ________________________ 

 
Date: ________________________ 

 
 

 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 38 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 39 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 40 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 41 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 42 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 43 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 44 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 45 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 46 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 47 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 48 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 49 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 50 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 51 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 52 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 53 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 54 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 55 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 56 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 57 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 58 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 59 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 60 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 61 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 62 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 63 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 64 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 65 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 66 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 67 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 68 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 69 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 70 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 71 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 72 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 73 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 74 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 75 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 76 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 77 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 78 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 79 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 80 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 81 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 82 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

Sewage, & Utility Pumps, Test Pumps, Well Pumps & Systems.

• Fasteners, Hardware, & Raw Materials: Anchors, Bolts, Fastener Assortments, 
Hardware, Hooks, Key Stock, Lanyards, Manuals, Measuring Equipment, Nails, Nuts, 
Pins, Retaining Rings, Rivets, Safety Lockwire, Screws, Shim and Shim Stock, 
Socket Screws and Set Screws, Spacers and Standoffs, Staples, Thread Insert, 
Threaded Rods & Studs, Washers, Braces and Brackets, Door Hardware, Door 
Hardware Replacement Parts, Drawer and Cabinet Hardware, Garage Door
Openers, Hardware Supplies, Hook and Loop Fasteners, Hooks, Magnets and 
Magnetic Strips, Mounts and Vibration Control, O-Rings & O-Ring Kits, Rubber
Edge Trim Seals, Rubber Edging, Springs, Tarps & Tarp Accessories, Wall and 
Hand Rail Hardware, Window Hardware, Alloy Steel, Aluminum, Assortments, Brass, 
Bronze, Carbon Steel, Cast Iron, Ceramic, Copper, Cork, Fabrics, Felt, Fiberglass, 
Foam, Graphite, Plastics, Rubber, Stainless Steel, Tin, Titanium, Tool Steel, Wire 
Cloth.

• Building & Ground Maintenance: Camping Equipment, Concrete Mixing & 
Preparation, Crop, Nursery, and Landscaping, Cutting & Pruning Tools, Electrical 
Generators, Engines, Fencing and Fencing Hardware, Forestry, Hoses and Sprinkler 
Systems, Insect and Pest Control, Lawn Mower Attachments, Lawn Mowers & 
Equipment, Outdoor Equipment Replacement Parts, Power Brushes, Yard Vacuums 
and Leaf Blowers, Pressure Washers and Steam Cleaners, Rakes and Cultivating 
Tools, Shovels, Tampers and Digging Tools, Snow and Ice Removal, Soil Treatment 
and Weed Control, Sprayers and Spreaders, Temporary Outdoor Structures, and 
Accessories, Water Diversion & Erosion Control, Wheelbarrows and Wheelbarrow 
Accessories, Automotive Paints and Coatings, Exterior Paints & Stains, Floor & 
Multi Surface Coatings, Interior Paints & Stains, Paint & Coating Applicators, Paint 
Booths & Accessories, Paint Mixers, Shakers, and Accessories, Paint Sprayers & 
Accessories, Paint Thinners, Removers, and Cleaners, Paint Trays & Buckets, Paint 
and Wallpaper Tools, Painting Equipment Replacement Parts, Rook & Leak 
Coatings, Specialized Paints & Coatings, Spray Paints & Primers, Striping & 
Marking Paints & Chalks, Surface Protection & Dust Barriers.

Table 148: Depth and 8readth of Offered Equipment Products and Services

Indicate below if the listed types or classes of equipment, products, and services are offered within your proposal. Provide additional 
comments in the text box provided, as necessary.

Line 
Item Category or Type Offered * Comments

71 Facility MRO Yes
No

North America Grainger provides a comprehensive 
product and service offering addressing this category. *

72 Industrial supplies or building materials Yes
No

North America Grainger provides a comprehensive 
product and service offering addressing this category. *

73 Electric, mechanical, fluid, or pneumatic power 
transmission

Yes
No

North America Grainger provides a comprehensive 
product and service offering addressing this category. *

74 Electrical service or lighting Yes
No

North America Grainger provides a comprehensive 
product and service offering addressing this category. *

75 Plumbing or waterworks Yes
No

North America Grainger provides a comprehensive 
product and service offering addressing this category.

76 Services related to the offering of the solutions 
in Lines 71-75 above

Yes
No

North America Grainger provides a comprehensive 
service offering addressing categories referenced in 
Lines 71-75.

Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications Form

Only those Proposer Exceptions to Terms, Conditions, or Specifications that have been accepted by Sourcewell have been 
incorporated into the contract text.

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 83 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger  

Documents 
 

Ensure your submission document(s) conforms to the following: 
 

1. Documents in PDF format are preferred. Documents in Word, Excel, or compatible formats may also be provided. 
 

2. Documents should NOT have a security password, as Sourcewell may not be able to open the file. It is your sole responsibility to 
ensure that the uploaded document(s) are not either defective, corrupted or blank and that the documents can be opened and viewed 
by Sourcewell. 

 
3. Sourcewell may reject any response where any document(s) cannot be opened and viewed by Sourcewell. 

 
4. If you need to upload more than one (1) document for a single item, you should combine the documents into one zipped file. If the 
zipped file contains more than one (1) document, ensure each document is named, in relation to the submission format item responding 
to. For example, if responding to the Marketing Plan category save the document as "Marketing Plan." 

 
Pricing - Pricing-091422.zip - Tuesday September 13, 2022 10:49:00 
Financial Strength and Stability - Financial Strength.zip - Tuesday September 13, 2022 09:02:00 
Marketing Plan/Samples - Marketing Plan.zip - Tuesday September 13, 2022 09:02:38 
WMBE/MBE/SBE or Related Certificates (optional) 
Warranty Information - Table 9_Q46 Sourcewell Grainger Warranty .pdf - Tuesday September 13, 2022 09:02:51 
Standard Transaction Document Samples - Standard Transaction Documents.zip - Tuesday September 13, 2022 09:03:01 
Upload Additional Document - Additional Documents.zip - Tuesday September 13, 2022 09:03:12 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 84 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 85 of 99



Bid Number: RFP 091422 Vendor Name: W.W. Grainger

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 86 of 99



GAVIN NEWSOM 

GOVERNOR 

MARK S. GHILARDUCCI 

DIRECTOR 

3650 SCHRIEVER AVENUE, MATHER, CA 95655 

(916) 845-8859 TELEPHONE (916) 845-8511 FAX

www.CalOES.ca.gov 

March 12, 2021 

Nick Kimball 

City Manager 

City of San Fernando 

117 Macneil Street 

San Fernando, CA 91340-2911 

SUBJECT: NOTIFICATION OF SUBRECIPIENT ALLOCATION 

Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Community Power Resiliency Allocation to 

Cities Program 

Period of Performance:  July 1, 2020, to October 31, 2021 

Dear Mr. Kimball: 

The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) approved 

your FY 2020-21 Community Power Resiliency allocation in the amount of 

$300,000. Cities are encouraged to support one or more of the Community 

Power Resiliency areas: schools, food storage reserves, and/or COVID-19 testing 

sites. Eligible activities under this allocation are limited to: 

 Equipment-

Funds may be used for the procurement of:

o Generators and generator connections for essential facilities, with

an emphasis on clean energy and green solutions where possible or

other alternative backup power sources;

o Generator fuel and fuel storage;

o Redundant emergency communications (e.g., battery-powered

radios);

o Portable vehicle-mounted charging stations;

o Portable battery-powered and rechargeable radio repeater and

transmission equipment.

ATTACHMENT "D"
May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 87 of 99

http://www.caloes.ca.gov/


City of San Fernando 

March 12, 2021 

Page 2 of 3 

 
 

 Plans- 

Funds may be used for the development/update of: 

o Continuity plans; 

o Contingency plans for electrical disruptions that include 

considerations such as protecting individuals with access and 

functional needs, medical baseline and socially 

vulnerable populations, transportation, emergency public 

information, and preservation of essential functions; 

o Risk assessments for critical infrastructure and lifelines;  

o Post-event reports that identify lessons learned and corrective 

actions. 

 Public education materials or supplies focused on individual family 

preparedness for electric disruptions. 

 One-time costs associated with identifying and equipping resource 

centers for the public to access during electrical disruptions. 

 

The following activities are not allowed: 

 

 These funds shall not be used to secure, compensate, or backfill 

professional services contracts. 

 Response costs associated with electric disruption events including any 

staffing or new positions, Emergency Operations Center staffing, security, 

law or fire response, or other overtime charges. 

 

All activities funded with this allocation must be completed within the Grant 

Subaward period of performance. Additionally, the Subrecipient is subject to the 

following requirements: 

 

 As a condition of receiving funding, cities will be required to collaborate 

with their counties within their jurisdiction to support critical infrastructure 

and resiliency county-wide with a particular focus on public safety, 

vulnerable communities, and individuals with access and functional 

needs. 

 Must ensure they and their principals are not presently debarred, 

suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible. 

 Must provide a Progress Report on the expenditures of the funds. The 

Progress Report is due no later than November 30, 2021. This Progress 

Report shall identify how the funds have been used, including identifying 

each project or activity undertaken, local entity that undertook the 

project or activity, the amount of funding provided to the project or 

activity, and a description of each project or activity. The report shall also 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 88 of 99



City of San Fernando 

March 12, 2021 

Page 3 of 3 

 
 

 

 

 

identify the specific outcomes achieved by each project or activity, 

including whether the project or activity was completed and whether it 

was used during power outages. 

 Must coordinate with their city or county planning agency to ensure that 

the project is in compliance with the California Environmental Quality Act 

(CEQA) Public Resource Code, Section 21000 et seq. 

 Comply with the California Public Records Act, Government Code Section 

6250 et seq. 

 Must procure goods and services in compliance with applicable state 

and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and policies. 

 

The undersigned represents that he/she is authorized to enter into this 

agreement for and on behalf of the Applicant. 

 

Subrecipient: ________________________________________________________________ 

Signature of Authorized Agent: _______________________________________________ 

Printed Name of Authorized Agent: ___________________________________________ 

Title: ________________________________________ Date: __________________________ 

 

Your dated signature and above fillable information is required on this 

Notification of Subrecipient Allocation. Please sign and return requested 

information to PSPS@CalOES.ca.gov within 20 calendar days upon receipt and 

keep a copy for your records. For further assistance, please email Cindy Logan 

at PSPS@CalOES.ca.gov.  
 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 
MARK S. GHILARDUCCI 

Director

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 89 of 99

mailto:PSPS@CalOES.ca.gov
mailto:PSPS@CalOES.ca.gov


ATTACHMENT "E"May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 90 of 99



May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 91 of 99



This Page  

Intentionally  

Left Blank 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 92 of 99



 
 
 
 
 
 

 

AGENDA REPORT 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT                 117 MACNEIL STREET, SAN FERNANDO, CA 91340                 (818) 898-7307                 WWW.SFCITY.ORG 

REVIEW:      ☒ Finance Director        ☐ Deputy City Manager       ☒ City Manager 
 

To: Mayor Celeste T. Rodriguez and Councilmembers 
  
From:  Nick Kimball, City Manager 
 By: Erica D. Melton, Director of Finance/City Treasurer 
    
Date:  May 30, 2023  
 
Subject: Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget Study Session No. 2 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that the City Council:  
 
a. Review and discuss the Fiscal Year (FY) 2023-2024 Proposed Budget (Attachment “A”); and 
 
b. Provide direction to staff, as appropriate. 
 
  
BACKGROUND: 

1. On February 21, 2023, the City Council received a presentation of the Annual Comprehensive 
Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022, FY 2022-2023 Mid-Year 
Budget update, and FY 2023-2024 Budget Outlook.  This marked the kick-off of the Fiscal Year  
2023-2024 Budget season. 

2. On March 3, 2023, the City Council held a Special Study Session to review the 2022-2026 
Strategic Goals and discuss Fiscal Year 2023-2024 City Council Priorities. 

3. During April 2023, the City Manager and Director of Finance met with each Department 
to develop the FY 2023-2024 City Manager’s Proposed Budget, which includes revenues and 
expenditures for the General Fund, Enterprise Funds, and all Special Revenue Funds. 

4. On May 1, 2023, the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget in Brief was provided to City 
Council and posted to the City’s website.   

5. On May 5, 2023, the complete Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget was posted to the 
City’s website and delivered to City Council (SFCITY.ORG/Finance/#Financial-Documents). 

6. On May 15, 2023, the City Council received the Budget Overview presentation from staff and 
held discussion. 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 93 of 99

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#financial-documents


Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget Study Session No. 2 
Page 2 of 4 
 
 
7. On May 22, 2023, the City Council received presentations from the Administration, City Clerk, 

Police, Finance, and Recreation and Community Services departments and held discussion. 

8. The next Budget Study Session is currently scheduled for Monday, June 5, 2023 (if needed) to 
complete proposed budget discussions and provide follow up from prior budget study 
sessions.  

9. A Public Hearing to adopt the Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget is tentatively scheduled for 
Tuesday, June 20, 2023. 

ANALYSIS: 

Budget Overview. 
The theme of the FY 2023-2024 City Manager’s Proposed Budget is to “Let the Dust Settle.”  
Although this theme seems to indicate a pause in activity, that will certainly not be the case.  
Utilizing the significant additional resources approved by City Council since 2020, each 
Department’s work plan includes efforts to move the Strategic Goals forward.  
 
Due to the economic uncertainty predicted by many economists over the next year, the 
significant number of service enhancements approved by City Council over the last three budget 
cycles, and  the return to normal operations post-COVID, Letting the Dust Settle will allow staff 
to complete the recruitments for new staff positions approved by City Council, procure the new 
equipment approved by City Council, implement the new programs approved by City Council, 
and measure the impact of those new positions, equipment, and programs on services.  
Additionally, since there is widespread economic uncertainty, the proposed budget focuses on 
one-time enhancements and includes minimal on-going enhancements (i.e., no new staff 
positions being proposed). 
 
Nearly $5.0 million in General Fund enhancement requests were submitted by City Departments.  
After initial review of the proposed budget, the City Manager is recommending $60,000 in 
ongoing enhancements and $319,190 in one-time enhancements in the General Fund.  More 
detailed information on approved enhancements is included in the “Recommended 
Enhancements” section of proposed budget document. 
 
Overall, the General Fund has a budget surplus (i.e., total revenues exceed total expenditures) of 
approximately $266,835.  More information regarding the FY 2023-2024 Proposed General Fund 
Budget will be provided during the scheduled Budget Study Sessions. 
 
Measure A and Measure SF.  
In June 2013, San Fernando voters approved a 0.50% local transaction use tax (Measure A) for a 
period of seven years.  In November 2018, voters approved to extend the tax indefinitely, which 
will provide financial stability to the City in the near future. In November 2020, San Fernando 
voters approved an additional 0.25% local transaction use tax (Measure SF), for a total local 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 94 of 99



Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget Study Session No. 2 
Page 3 of 4 
 
 
transaction use tax of 0.75%.  This effort was critical to keep sales tax local and avoid other taxing 
entities from passing a transaction tax that would otherwise be imposed on San Fernando 
customers, but spent regionally rather than locally.  
 
The Local Transaction Use Tax is projected to raise approximately $5.05 million in FY 2023-2024 
and will continue to be used to pay off existing debt, strengthen rainy day fund reserves, enhance 
services to the community and provide the financial resources necessary to implement the City’s 
Strategic Goals 2022-2026.  More detail on City’s Local Transaction Use Tax expenditures, can be 
found in the City Manager’s Budget Message in the Proposed Budget document. 
 
Capital Improvements. 
The FY 2023-2024 Proposed Budget includes funding for a number of critical capital 
improvements to address the backlog of deferred maintenance, including $2.0 million for Phase 
3 of the Citywide slurry seal project, $6.3 million for water improvements, $1.1 million for 
transportation and traffic safety improvements and $0.3 million for bus shelters.  Funding for 
these capital improvements is provided primarily through Special Revenue Funds, Capital Grant 
Funds and Enterprise Funds.  
 
More detailed information regarding the FY 2023-2024 Proposed Capital Improvement Program 
may be found in Section VI. “Capital Improvement Projects” of proposed budget document. 
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT: 
 
The total Proposed Budget for all funds is approximately $51.6 million.  The Proposed General 
Fund budget is $26.0 million (7% decrease from FY 2022-2023). The decrease is primarily the 
result of approximately $3.1 million in reserve funds appropriated during FY 2022-2023 for HVAC 
and Street Projects.  Excluding the use of reserve funds, the budget represents a 2.2% increase 
from the prior fiscal year. In accordance with the City’s Budget Policy, the FY 2023-2024 Proposed 
General Fund Budget represents a balance budget, with General Fund revenues of $26.3 million 
and expenditures of $26.0 million estimating a surplus of $266,835. 
 
Follow up items to be considered at the conclusion of Department budget presentations are 
included in the “Additional Enhancement Requests: Not Included in the Proposed Budget” 
section of Attachment “B” as well as Attachment “D.” 
 
 
CONCLUSION: 

It is recommended that the City Council review the FY 2023-2024 Proposed Budget and allocate 
the resources required to move the 2022-2026 Strategic Goals and Council Priorities forward in 
the upcoming fiscal year. 
 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 95 of 99



Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Budget Study Session No. 2 
Page 4 of 4 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

A. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget (provided digitally through web link and hardcopy 
available at the Finance counter)  

B. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget – Enhancement Request Summary 
C. Fiscal Year 2023-2024 Proposed Budget – Department Presentations (provided digitally 

through web link.  Performance Measure revisions to be included week of 05/30/2023) 
D. May 22, 2023 City Council Meeting Recap 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 96 of 99

https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#financial-documents
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#financial-documents
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#financial-documents
https://ci.san-fernando.ca.us/finance/#financial-documents


ENHANCEMENT REQUEST SUMMARY

FY 2023-2024
Ongoing One-Time Not

Request Description Dept Amount Recommend Recommend Recommended

Management Intern ADM 25,000 - - 25,000 

Labor Attorney ADM 45,625 - 45,625 - 

Employee Recognition Program ADM 1,000 1,000 - - 

Recruitment Management Software ADM 10,000 - - 10,000 

AutoCad Software License ADM 1,572 - - 1,572 

Tuition Assistance (Morales) ADM 1,500 - 1,500 - 

Professional Records Scanning Services CLK 10,000 - 10,000 - 

Senior Planner CD 142,192 - - 142,192 

Building Inspector/Plan Examiner CD 137,143 - - 137,143 

Contract Building Official & Plan Check CD 25,000 - 25,000 - 

On-Call Environmental/Architectural Design Review Svcs & Planning CD 50,000 - 75,000 (25,000) 

Tutorial Video for Building Permit & Online Portal CD 6,000 - 6,000 - 

Tutorial Video for Homeless Outreach CD 3,000 - - 3,000 

Outreach Materials for Housing Division CD 6,000 - - 6,000 

Housing Division Department Supplies CD 1,000 3,500 - (2,500) 

Membership & Conference for Housing Division CD 2,000 - 2,000 - 

Outreach Materials for Code Enforcement CD 9,000 - - 9,000 

Training for new Code Enforcement Officer CD 1,650 - - 1,650 

Tuition for Marina CD 3,000 - 3,000 - 

Tuition for Fernando CD 1,500 - 1,500 - 

Comprehensive Design Standards CD 150,000 - - 150,000 

Comprehensive User Fee Study FIN 25,000 - 25,000 - 

PC Replacement Project (Year 1) FIN 35,000 - 35,000 - 

Everbridge - Emergency Notification System FIN 12,600 12,600 - - 

IT Projects FIN 7,500 - - 7,500 

Police Records Specialist PD 75,213 - - 75,213 

Detective Security Gate PD 60,000 - - 60,000 

Wall Off IT Room PD 20,000 - 5,000 15,000 

Desktop Computers (4) for Patrol Report Room PD 4,800 - - 4,800 

Handheld Ticket Writers for Officers (6) PD 2,000 2,000 - - 

Flock System (10 devices) PD 33,500 - - 33,500 

Plan It Software PD 4,000 - - 4,000 

Callyo Evidence Collection Software PD 4,920 - - 4,920 

2023 Oxnard Police Explorers Channel Islands Challenge PD 9,015 - 9,015 - 

(4) Bodyworn Cameras for CSOs PD 7,500 - 3,750 3,750 

Police Sergeant PD 184,355 - - 184,355 

Office Furniture Replacement PD 59,776 - - 59,776 

CSO Vehicle Replacement PD 40,000 - - 40,000 

Update (1) Crown Victoria for Detective Division PD 2,000 - - 2,000 

LEFTA Software Suite PD 6,000 - - 6,000 

POST-Mandated Training for Detective Lt. PD 10,000 - 10,000 - 

POST-Mandated Training for Patrol PD 15,000 - 15,000 - 

Background Investigations/Polygraphs PD 21,800 - 21,800 - 

Police Officer (1) PD 121,290 - - 121,290 

Graffiti Removal Supplies PW 10,000 10,000 - - 

Administrative Analyst PW 120,000 - - 120,000 

Grapple Truck PW 200,000 - - 200,000 

Facility Condition Assessment Report PW 25,000 - 25,000 - 

Mini Power Sweeper PW 150,000 - - 150,000 

Historical Consultant RCS 3,500 - - 3,500 

Housekeeping Services Lopez Adobe RCS 1,500 - - 1,500 

Programming Supplies for Lopez Adobe RCS 2,000 3,500 - (1,500) 

Traffic Control for SF Valley Mile RCS 20,000 20,000 - -

Remodel LP Office RCS 2,376 - - 2,376 

Repair Rec. Park Slide RCS 13,850 - - 13,850 

Increase Membership Dues RCS 330 - - 330 

Increase MMAP Match RCS 8,000 8,000 - - 

Reclassify Two (2) Part-time Office Clerks to Full-time RCS 50,000 - - 50,000 

New Position Program Specialist - Senior Programs RCS 95,710 - - 95,710 

New Position Program Specialist - Social Media RCS 95,710 - - 95,710 

Reclassify Program Coordinator to RCS Supervisor RCS 28,350 - - 28,350 

ATTACHMENT "B"
May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 97 of 99



ENHANCEMENT REQUEST SUMMARY

FY 2023-2024
Ongoing One-Time Not

Request Description Dept Amount Recommend Recommend Recommended

New Computers (5) RCS 3,314 - - 3,314 

Replace Basketball Retractable Rim System RCS 7,510 - - 7,510 

Replair Rec. Park Roof RCS 1,021,080 - - 1,021,080 

Repair Rec. Park HVAC RCS 350,000 - - 350,000 

Replair Las Palmas Roof RCS 1,021,080 - - 1,021,080 

Replair Las Palmas HVAC RCS 350,000 - - 350,000 

GENERAL FUND DEPT REQUESTS 4,972,761          

Total Proposed Budget Enhancement Requests 379,790 60,600 319,190 4,592,971          

Ongoing One-Time

Dept Request Recommend Recommend

ADM 64,000 - 64,000 

RCS 50,000 - 50,000 

VAR 6,000 6,000 - 

ADM 25,000 - 25,000 

PW 25,000 - 25,000 

RCS 2,000 - 2,000 

PD 258,848 258,848 - 

PW 800,000 - 800,000

CD 25,000 - 25,000 

CLK 3,500 - 3,500 

Additional Enhancement Requests: Not Included in Proposed Budget 

Language Translation Services

Child Care Services - Special Events

Commission Stipend Increase ($100/meeting)

Class and Compensation Study: Police Department

Sidewalk Cleaning - Homeless Services

Parks Signage - Vandalism Reporting

Add Lieutenant Position

Sidewalk Repairs1

Public Arts - Mural Fund2

Commissioner Training - Onsite Consultant

Participatory Budgeting3 FIN 75,000 - 10,000 

Total Additional Enhancement Requests 1,334,348          264,848 1,004,500          

Ongoing One-Time

FY 2023-2024 Measure A/SF Funds: Establish Reserves Dept. Request Recommend Recommend

Unappropriated General Fund Reserves 4 FIN 266,835 266,835 

Self Insurance Fund Reserve FIN 850,000 850,000 

Equipment Replacment Fund Reserve FIN 103,375 103,375 

Pre-Fund OPEB FIN 500,000 500,000 

Appropriated Reserve FIN 85,000 - 85,000 

Total Measure A/SF Uses 1,805,210          - 1,805,210 

Total Enhancements Request 1,805,210          - 1,805,210 

Total Proposed General Fund Expenditures 27,345,728        

Total Projected General Fund Revenues 26,278,215        

General Fund Annual Surplus/Deficit (1,067,513)

NOTES:
1 Funding for Sidewalk Repairs appropriated in in FY2022/2023 Special Revenue Funds.  Plans to be presented to City Council in July 2023.
2 Amount estimated to establish initial Public Arts - Mural Program Fund.

4
 Original Surplus Proposed Budget amount of $266,836 included for recording purposes.  To be determined based on final City Council discussions.

3
 Amount estimated to establish initial Participatory Budgeting funding, based on discussion with City of Los Angeles Reforms for Equity and Public Acknowledgment of 

Institutional Racism (L.A. REPAIR)  participatory budget pilot program. 

May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 98 of 99



May 22, 2023 City Council Meeting Re‐Cap

Dept General Comments Work Plan Budget Item Follow Up

ADM
•In support of Employee
Recognition Program
Enhancement (JF, MM, MS, CR)

•Provide opportunities to pipeline
jobs between City and Community
(CR)
•Consider Online Citizens Academy
(CR)

•Consider Police Lieutenant
Position (JF)
•Include line item enhancement to
repair street/sidewalks (MM)
•Consider Mural Fund for public
art (CR)
•Class & Comp Study for POA (JF)

•Provide current status of ARPA
allocations (JF)
•Provide copy of department
presentations & post online (MM)
•Provide revised pages for
performance measures (CR)
•Update on service request form (CR)

CLK
•In Support of professional
records scanning services (JF,
MM, MS, CR)

•Increase voter outreach events &
identify other locations (MS)
•Consider Outdoor Market for
voter outreach (CR)
•Consider Saturday Commissioner
trainings (CR)

PD

•Provide patrolling to every
street in the City (JF)
•Impressed with staff training &
professional development (MM)
•Supportive of Parent/Citizen
Academies & PD objectives (MM)

•Collaboration between PD/PW to
reduce speed in high traffic areas
(CR)
•CSO work plan to include
identifying bulky item areas &
reporting for pick up (CR)

•Provide previous year overtime data
and chart (JF, MS)
•Provide feedback on purchase of
radio equipment (JF)
•Recruitment discussion and best
ways to capture talent (JF)
•Once fully staffed, return to discuss
placing a SRO (MS)
•Return with metrics for allegations
for excessive force (CR)
•Revise performance measures to
show department goals vs averages
(CR)
•Collect data to show high traffic
collision areas (CR)

FIN

•Supports user fee study (JF)
•Supports online payment (JF)
•Supports PC Replacement (JF,
MM)

•Show how fee is calculated in
water bills (JF)

•Include line item for participatory
budgeting for Measure SF (CR)

•Provide Retiree health chart from
Pension Consultant (JF)

RCS Continued to 5/30/23 Session 2 •Provide list of City‐Sponsored events
(CR)

1 of 1

ATTACHMENT "D"
May 30, 2023 Special CC Mtg

Page 99 of 99


	05-30-23 CC-S Agenda (Budget 2)
	CC-S (1-5)
	1 - PW_Approve Purchase of Generators (5-30-2023)
	PW_Approve Purchase of Generators (5-30-23) AR
	PW_Approve Purchase of Generators (5-30-23) ATT A
	PW_Approve Purchase of Generators (5-30-23) ATT B
	PW_Approve Purchase of Generators (5-30-23) ATT C
	PW_Approve Purchase of Generators (5-30-23) ATT D
	PW_Approve Purchase of Generators (5-30-23) ATT E

	CC-S (1-5)
	2 - FIN_FY 2023-24 Budget Study Session No 2 (5-30-2023)
	FIN_FY 2023-24 Budget Study Session No 2 (5-30-23) AR
	FIN_FY 2023-24 Budget Study Session No 2 (5-30-23) ATT B
	FIN_FY 2023-24 Budget Study Session No 2 (5-30-23) ATT D




